INTHE UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION and
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
Hantiffs,
V.
1% FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, INC.; AMERICAN

BENEFITSCLUB, INC.; ROCKWELL
HOLDINGS, INC.; AFFINITY MARKETING &

SALES, INC.; AFFINITY MARKETING & SALES, LLC,

CROWN DISTRIBUTORS, INC,;

LEADER SALES COMPANY, INC.; MERCHANT
SERVICES, INC; MERCURY CONSULTING
SERVICES; MILLENNIUM SALES, INC;

NORTH AMERICAN MARKETING GROUP, INC,;
REGAL PRODUCTS SALES & DISTRIBUTING
COMPANY; ROCKWELL MARKETING, INC.; and
THE FLETCHER GROUP, INC.,,

[llinois corporations;

JOHN F. BOONE, individudly and as an officer of
Affinity Marketing & Sdles, Inc., Crown Didributors, Inc.,
Merchant Services, Inc., Millennium Sdes, Inc., North
American Marketing Group, Inc., Rockwell Holdings, Inc.,
Rockwell Marketing, Inc.; and The FHetcher Group, Inc.,

MICHAEL COOPER,
individudly; and

ROBERT C. MORGAN,
individualy,

Defendants.
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STIPULATED ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION WITH CONSUMER
REDRESS AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

Pantiffs, the Federa Trade Commisson (“FTC’ or “the Commission”) and the State of Illinais,
by and through James E. Ryan, Attorney Generd of Illinois (* State of 1llinois’), filed their complaint for
apermanent injunction and other rdlief in this matter pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federd
Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. 88 53(b) and 57b, the Telemarketing and Consumer
Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act (“ Telemarketing Act”), 15 U.S.C. 88 6101, et seq., the FTC's Trade
Regulation Rule entitled “ Tdemarketing Sdes Rule’ (“ Telemarketing Rul€’), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, the
[llinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act (“ Consumer Fraud Act”), 815 ILCS
505/1, et seq., and the Illinois Credit Services Organizations Act, 815 ILCS 605/1, et seq.

The Commission, the State of Illinois, and Defendants, having been represented by counsd and
acting by and through such counsel, have consented to the entry of this Stipulated Order for Permanent
Injunction With Consumer Redress and Other Equitable Relief (* Stipulated Order”) without atrid or
adjudication of any issue of law or fact herein. Defendants deny any wrongdoing or liability. “This
Stipulated Order isfor settlement purposes only and does not congtitute and shal not be interpreted to
condtitute an admisson by Defendants that they have engaged in violations of any law or regulation,
including but not limited to the FTC Act, the ILCS, the Tdlemarketing Act, the FTC' s Tdemarketing
Rules, the Illinois Consumer Fraud Act, or the lllinois Credit Services Organizations Act, or thet the
facts dleged in the complaint, other than the jurisdictiona facts, are true. This Stipulated Order shall
not be used againg the Defendants in any proceeding, with the exception of any proceeding to enforce

this Stipulated Order.
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NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission, the State of 1llinois, and Defendants, having requested
the Court to enter this Stipulated Order, and the Court having considered the Stipulated Order reached
among the parties and for other cause gppearing, itisORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED
asfollows

FINDINGS

1 Thisis an action by the Commission ingtituted under Sections 13(b) and 19 of the FTC
Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 53(b) and 57b, the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 6101, et seg., andthe FTC's
Telemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, and an action by the State of Illinois ingtituted under the
Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 6101, et seq., the FTC's Telemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310,
the Illinois Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/1, et seq., and the lllinois Credit Services
Organizations Act, 815 ILCS 605/1, et seq. Pursuant to these statutes and regulations, the
Commission and the State of 1llinois have the authority to seek the relief contained herein.

2. Faintiffs complaint sates a clam upon which relief may be granted against Defendants
under Sections 5, 13(b), and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45, 53(b) & 57b, the Telemarketing
Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 6101, et seg., the FTC's Tdlemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, the lllinois
Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/1, et seq., and the lllinois Credit Services Organizations Act, 815
ILCS 605/1, et seq.

3. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and dl parties hereto.
Venue in the Northern Didtrict of 1llinoisis proper.

4, The dleged activities of Defendants are in or affecting commerce, as defined in Section

4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44, and Section 1(f) of the Illinois Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS
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505/1(f).

5. Defendants, without admitting the dlegations set forth in Plaintiffs complaint, agree to
entry of this Stipulated Order.

6. The parties shdl each bear their own costs and attorneys feesincurred in this action
and have waived al claims under the Equal Accessto Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412, and dl rightsto
seek judicid review, or otherwise to chdlenge the vdidity of this Stipulated Order.

7. Entry of this Stipulated Order isin the public interest.

ORDER
DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Stipulated Order, the following definitions shal apply:

1. “Plaintiffs’ means the Federd Trade Commission and the State of llinois, or ether of
them.

2. “ Defendants’ means 1% Financid Solutions, Inc., American Benefits Club, Inc.,
Rockwedl Holdings, Inc., Affinity Marketing & Sdes, Inc., Affinity Marketing & Sdes, LLC, Crown
Digtributors, Inc., Leader Sdes Company, Inc., Merchant Services, Inc., Mercury Consulting Services,
Millennium Sdles, Inc., North American Marketing Group, Inc., Rega Products Sdles & Digtributing
Company, Rockwell Marketing, Inc., The FHetcher Group, Inc., John F. Boone, Michagl Cooper,
Robert C. Morgan, and each of them, by whatever names each might be known.

3. “ Receiver ship Defendants’ means 1% Financid Solutions, Inc., American Benefits
Club, Inc., Rockwell Holdings, Inc., Affinity Marketing & Sdes, Inc., Affinity Marketing & Sdes,

LLC, Crown Didtributors, Inc., Leader Sdes Company, Inc., Merchant Services, Inc., Mercury
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Conaulting Services, Millennium Sdes, Inc., North American Marketing Group, Inc., Rega Products
Sdes & Digributing Company, Rockwell Marketing, Inc., The Fletcher Group, Inc., and any affiliates,
subsdiaries, divisons, sales entities, successors, or assgns.

4, “Receiver” means Gregg E. Szilagyi, Esq., of Ungaretti & Harris, 3500 Three Firgt
Nationd Plaza, Chicago, Illinois 60602.

5. “Assets’ meansdl red and persond property of any Defendant, or held for the
benefit of any Defendant, including but not limited to “goods” “ingruments,” “equipment,” “fixtures,”
“generd intangibles” “inventory,” “checks,” or “notes,” (as these terms are defined in the Uniform

Commercid Code), lines of credit and al cash, wherever located.

6. “Customer” means any person who has paid or may be required to pay for goods or
services.
7. “Document” is synonymous in meaning and equd in scope to the usage of theterm in

Federa Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writings, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs,
audio and video recordings, computer records, and other data compilations from which information can
be obtained and trandated, if necessary, through detection devices into reasonably usable form. A
draft or non-identica copy is a separate document within the meaning of the term.

8. “Person” means any individud, group, unincorporated association, limited or generd

partnership, corporation, or other business entity.

9. “Material” meanslikely to affect aperson’s choice of, or conduct regarding, goods or
services.
10. “Telemarketing” meansaplan, program, or campaign which is conducted to induce
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the purchase of goods or services by use of one or more telephones and which involves more than one
interdate telephone cdl. See 16 C.F.R. § 310.2(u).

11. “Assisting others’ means (1) performing customer service functions including, but
not limited to, receiving or responding to consumer complaints, receiving identifying and financid
information from consumers, and communicating with consumers about extensons of credit; (2)
developing, providing or arranging for the development or provision of sales scripts or any other
marketing materid; (3) providing names of, or arranging for the provison of names of, potentia
customers, or (4) performing marketing services of any kind.

12. “Credit-related product, program, or service’ means any product, program, or
service which is advertised, offered for sde, or sold to consumers as a method by which consumers
may establish or obtain any extension of credit or credit device, including, but not limited to credit
cards, loans, or financing, or as amethod to consolidate or liquidate debts.

I

BAN ON SALE OF CREDIT-RELATED PRODUCT, PROGRAM, OR SERVICE

IT ISTHEREFORE ORDERED that Defendants are permanently restrained and enjoined
from engaging or participating, or asssting others engaged or participating, whether directly or
indirectly, in concert with others, or through any business entity or other device, in the advertisng,
marketing, sde, or offering for sde of any credit-related product, program, or service.

[

PERFORMANCE BOND FOR TELEMARKETING

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, individualy and collectively, whether
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directly, in concert with others, or through any business entity or other device, are hereby permanently
restrained and enjoined from engaging or participating in, or asssting others engaged or participating in,
the offering for sde or sdling of any product, program, or service to the generd public by means of
telemarketing, unless at least two weeks prior to such activities, such Defendant obtains a performance
bond in the principal sum of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00).

A. The performance bond required by this Section shal be conditioned upon the bonded
Defendant’ s compliance with Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, the Telemarketing Act, 15
U.S.C. 88 6101, et seq., the FTC's Tdlemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, the Illinois Consumer
Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/1, et seq., the Illinois Credit Services Organizations Act, 815 ILCS 605/1,
et seq., and the provisons of this Stipulated Order. The bond shall be deemed continuous and remain
in full force and effect so long as the bonded Defendant continues to offer for sale or sall any product,
program, or sarvice to the generd public by means of telemarketing, directly or indirectly, and for at
least three years thereafter. The bond shdl cite this Stipulated Order as the subject matter of the bond,
and shdl provide surety thereunder againg financid loss resulting from whole or partid failure of
performance due, in whole or in part, to any violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 8§45, the
Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 6101, et seq., the FTC's Telemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310,
the Illinois Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/1, et seq., the lllinois Credit Services Organizations
Act, 815 ILCS 605/1, et seq., or the provisons of this Stipulated Order;

B. The performance bond required by this Section shdl be an insurance agreement
providing surety for financid lossissued by a surety company that is admitted to do businessin each of

the states in which the bonded Defendant is doing business and that holds a Federd Certificate of
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Authority as Acceptable Surety on Federd Bond and Reinsuring.  The performance bond shdl be
executed in favor of both: (1) the Federd Trade Commission and the State of Illinois for the benefit of
any person injured as aresult of any fase or mideading representation made while engaged in the
offering for sdle or sdlling of any product, program, or service to the generd public by means of
telemarketing; and (2) any customer so injured;

C. The performance bond required by this Section isin addition to, and not in lieu of, any
other bond required by any applicable federd, state, or locd law;

D. At least ten (10) days prior to the commencement of any activity for which a
performance bond is required under this Section, the bonded Defendant shall provide a copy of the
bond to the Director of the FTC's Midwest Region in Chicago and to the State of Illinois Chief of the
Consumer Fraud Bureau in Chicago at the addresses specified in Section XI, infra.

E Each bonded Defendant, each bonded Defendant’ s agents, or any persons acting in
concert or participation with him/her or under his’her authority, supervision, or control shall not disclose
the existence of the performance bond to any customer or prospective customer of any product,
program, or service without smultaneoudy disclosing the following: “THE BOND IS REQUIRED BY
ORDER OF THE U.S. DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOISIN
SETTLEMENT OF CHARGES THAT 15T FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, INC., AMERICAN
BENEFITS CLUB, INC., ROCKWELL HOLDINGS, INC., AFFINITY MARKETING &
SALES, INC,, AFFINITY MARKETING & SALES, LLC, CROWN DISTRIBUTORS, INC.,
LEADER SALES COMPANY, INC., MERCHANT SERVICES, INC., MERCURY

CONSULTING SERVICES, MILLENNIUM SALES, INC., NORTH AMERICAN
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MARKETING GROUP, INC., REGAL PRODUCTS SALES & DISTRIBUTING COMPANY,
ROCKWELL MARKETING, INC., THE FLETCHER GROUP, INC., JOHN F. BOONE,
MICHAEL COOPER, AND ROBERT C. MORGAN ENGAGED IN A PATTERN AND
PRACTICE OF MAKING FALSE AND MISLEADING REPRESENTATIONSIN
CONNECTION WITH THE ADVERTISING, PROMOTION, AND SALE OF CREDIT-
RELATED PRODUCTS, PROGRAMS, OR SERVICES.” The required disclosure shall be set forth
in aclear and conspicuous manner, separated from al other text, in 100% black ink againg alight
background, in print at least as large as the main text of the sdles materiad or document, and enclosed in
abox containing only the required disclosure. The disclosure, if required, shdl appear in dl sdes
materid, al publications, and on the front Sde of dl documents sent to customers to acknowledge
orders or the receipt of funds,

F. The Commission and the State of Illinais, or either of them, may execute againg the
performance bond if they demondtrate to the Court by a preponderance of the evidence that, after the
effective date of this Stipulated Order, any bonded Defendant, individually or through any other person
or entity: (1) made afase or mideading representation, directly or by implication, in the course of
engaging in the advertiang, marketing, promoting, offering for sale, or sde of any product, program, or
sarvice to the generd public by means of tdlemarketing, in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. 8§45, the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 6101, et seq., the FTC's Tdlemarketing Rule, 16
C.F.R. Part 310, the Illinois Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/1, et seq., or the Illinois Credit
Services Organizations Act, 815 ILCS 605/1, et seq.; or (2) violated the terms of this Stipulated

Order; and
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G. Proceedings ingtituted under this Section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other
civil or crimina remedies that may be provided by law, including any other proceedings Plaintiffs may
initiate to enforce this Stipulated Order.

M1
PROHIBITED BUSINESSACTIVITIES

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED tha, in connection with the advertisng, marketing, promoting,
offering for sale, or sde of any product, program, or service, Defendants, their successors, assgns,
officers, agents, servants, employees, and al other persons or entities in active concert or participation
with them who receive actud notice of this Order by persond service or otherwise, whether acting
directly or through any corporate or other device, are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from:

A. Misrepresenting, either oraly or in writing, directly or by implication:

1 that Defendants will provide consumers with, or arrange for consumers to
receive, amgor credit card, such asaVisaor MasterCard;

2. that Defendants will provide consumers with any credit-related product,
program, or service; and

3. any materid fact prior to purchase of any product, program, or service;

B. Violating the Telemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, et seq., induding, but not limited
tor

1 Violaing Section 310.3(a)(2) of the Telemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R.
8 310.3(a)(2), by misrepresenting, directly or by implication, any material aspect of the performance,

efficacy, nature, or central characteristics of goods or services that are the subject of asdes offer. 16
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C.F.R. 310.3()(2)(iii);

2. Violaing Section 310.3(a)(4) of the Tdlemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R.
8 310.4(a)(4), by making false or mideading statements to induce a person to pay for goods or
Services,

3. Violating Section 310.4(a)(4) of the Tdemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R.
8 310.4(a)(4), by requesting or receiving payment of any fee or consderation in advance of obtaining
or arranging an extension of credit when they have guaranteed or represented a high likelihood of
success in obtaining or arranging an extenson of credit; and

4, Violating Section 310.4(b)(1)(ii) of the Telemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R.
8 310.4(b)(1)(i1), by initiating outbound telephone cals to persons who have stated that they do not
wish to receive an outbound telephone cal made by or on behdf of Defendants;

C. Faling to:

1. establish and implement written procedures to comply with Section
310.4(b)(1)(ii) of the Telemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(1)(ii);

2. train Defendants personnel in the procedures established to comply with
Section 310.4(b)(2)(ii) of the Tdlemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. 8§ 310.4(b)(1)(ii); and

3. maintain and record lists of persons who may not be contacted, in compliance
with Section 310.4(b)(2)(ii) of the Telemarketing Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(2)(ii);

D. Violaing Section 2 of the lllinois Consumer Fraud Act by engaging in the following acts

or practices:

1 Failing to disclose dl fees and costs associated with obtaining any credit-related
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product, program, or service being offered by Defendants,

2. Representing, directly or by implication, that consumers will receive amagor
credit card with a $2500 credit limit, when in fact consumers may receive a debit or stored-vaue card;

3. Representing, directly or by implication, that consumers will receive amagor
credit card and then failing to provide such cards,

4, Representing, directly or by implication, that consumers will receive arefund of
their money, and then failing to provide such refunds,

5. Representing, directly or by implication, that there is no annua fee associated
with any credit-related product, program, or service offered by Defendants,

6. Dehiting consumers bank accounts and then failing to provide the goods
and/or services contracted for; and

7. Debiting consumers bank accounts in amounts grester than consumers
authorized;

E Vidlating the Illinois Credit Services Organizations Act by engaging in the following acts

or practices:

1 Charging an advance fee or other vauable consderation without having the
requisite $100,000 surety bond as required by the Credit Services Organizations Act;

2. Failing to post a copy of the $100,000 surety bond with the Illinois Secretary of
State, Index Divison,

3. Falling to provide consumers with a contract which meets dl of the

requirements of Section 7 of the Credit Services Organizations Act;
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4, Failing to provide consumers with a disclosure statement before the execution
of a contract which meets the requirements of Section 6 of the Credit Services Organizations Act;
5. Falling to register as a“ credit services organization” with the Illinois Secretary
of State, Index Divison, as required by Section 9 of the Credit Services Organizations Act; and
6. Misrepresenting, directly or by implication, the amount or type of credit thet a
consumer can recelve as aresult of the performance of Defendants services, or the amount of credit
improvement that a consumer can expect to recelve as aresult of Defendants' services, in violation of
Section 5(4) of the Credit Services Organizations Act;
F. Engaging in any business which condtitutes a “ credit services organization,” as defined in
Section 3(d) of the Credit Services Organizations Act, in or from the State of 1llinois;, and
G Engaging in the business of asssting consumersin obtaining loans or extensons of credit
in or from the State of Illinois.
AV

CONSUMER REDRESS

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that:

A. The Recaiver shal pay Plantiffs as provided in Section VI, infra. Payment shall be
made to the Commission viawire transfer in accordance with directions provided by the Commission.

B. All funds paid pursuant to this Section shal be deposited into a fund administered by
the Commission or its agent to be used for equitable relief, including but not limited to consumer redress
and any attendant expenses for the administration of any redress fund. In the event that direct redress

to consumersis wholly or partidly impracticable or funds remain after redressis completed, the
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Commission may apply any remaining funds for such other equitable relief (including consumer
information remedies) as it determines to be reasonably related to Defendants' practices dleged in the
complaint. Any funds not used for such equitable relief shall be deposdited to the Treasury as
disgorgement. Defendants shdl have no right to challenge the Commission’s choice of remedies under
this Section. Plaintiffs and Defendants acknowledge and agree that this judgment for equitable
monetary relief is soldy remedia in nature and is not afine, pendty, punitive assessment, or forfeture;

C. In the event of any default on any obligation to make payment under this Section,
interest, computed pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1961(a), shal accrue from the date of default to the date of
payment, and shal immediately become due and payable;

D. Defendants are hereby required, in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701, to furnish to
Paintiffs their respective taxpayer identifying numbers (socid security numbers or employer
identification numbers), which shdl be used for purposes of collecting and reporting on any delinquent
amount arisng out of such persons' relationship with the government; and

E For purposes of any subsequent proceedings to enforce payments required by this
Section or Section I1, infra, including but not limited to a non-dischargeability complaint filed in a
bankruptcy proceeding, Defendants waive any right to contest any dlegationsin Plaintiffs complaint.

\%

RIGHT TO REOPEN

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that within five (5) busness days &fter the date of entry of this
Stipulated Order, Defendants shall each submit to Plaintiffs a truthful sworn statement (in the form

shown on Appendix A to this Stipulated Order) that shdl reaffirm and atest to the truthfulness,
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accuracy, and completeness of their respective financia statements submitted to Plaintiffs and the
Recalver during the course of thislitigation. Plaintiffs agreement to this Stipulated Order is expresdy
premised upon the financia condition of Defendants, as represented in those financid statements, which
contain materid information upon which Rlantiffs rdied in negotiating and agreeing upon this Stipulated
Order.

If, upon motion of the Commission and the State of Illinois, or ether of them, the Court finds
that any Defendant failed to file the sworn stlatement required by this Section, or that any Defendant
faled to disclose any materid asset, materialy misrepresented the vaue of any asset, or made any other
materid misrepresentation in or omisson from the financid satement, the Commisson may ather: (1)
request that the judgment herein be reopened for the purpose of requiring additiona monetary
consumer redress or obtaining other equitable rdief up to seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000), the
total amount of consumer injury in this matter; or (2) seek to obtain other equitable relief.

Provided, however, that in dl other respects, thisjudgment shal remain in full force and effect,
unless otherwise ordered by the Court; and provided further, that proceedings indtituted under this
Section arein addition to, and not in lieu of, any other civil or crimina remedies that may be provided
by law, including but not limited to contempt proceedings, or any other proceedings that the

Commission, the United States, or the State of 11linois might initiate to enforce this Stipulated Order.
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VI

CUSTOMER LISTS

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, their successors, assgns, officers, agents,
directors, servants, employees, salespersons, independent contractors, attorneys, corporations,
subgdiaries, affiliates, dl other persons or entities directly or indirectly under their control or under
common control with them, and dl other persons or entities in active concert or participation with them
who receive actua notice of this Stipulated Order by persond service or otherwise, whether acting
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, are permanently restrained
and enjoined from sdlling, renting, leasing, transferring, or otherwise disclosing the name, address,
telephone number, socid security number, credit card number, bank account number, e-mail address,
or other identifying information of any person who paid any money to or received any credit-related
product, program, or service from any Defendant, or whose identifying information was obtained for
the purpose of soliciting them to pay money to or receive services from any Defendant a any time prior
to the date this Stipulated Order is entered, in connection with the sale or rendition of the products,
programs, or services referenced in the complaint.

Provided, however, that Defendants, their successors, assgns, officers, agents, directors,
servants, employees, salespersons, independent contractors, attorneys, corporations, subsidiaries,
affiliates, dl other persons or entities directly or indirectly under their control or under common control
with them, and al other persons or entitiesin active concert or participation with them who recelve
actud notice of this Stipulated Order by persond service or otherwise, whether acting directly or

through any corporation, subsdiary, divison, or other device, may provide such information to alaw
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enforcement agency ether voluntarily, or as required by any law, regulation, or court order.
Vil

RECEIVERSHIP

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that:

A. The appointment of Gregg E. Szilagyi as Recalver for the Recalvership Defendants,
pursuant to the Stipulated Preliminary Injunction entered by this Court on November 29, 2001, is
hereby continued as modified by this Order and Gregg E. Szilagyi is hereby appointed Recelver for the
Recevership Defendants,

B. The Recelver shdl liquidate the assats of the Recaivership Defendants remaining in his
possession, custody, or control. Upon completing the liquidation of these assets, the Recalver shadl
submit hisfind report and his find gpplication for fees and expenses, and, upon approvd of the same,
shdl pay:

1 The amounts dlowed by the Court pursuant to hisfind application for fees and
expenses, including but not limited to, professonal fees and auctioneers fees,

2. Such other clams againgt the assets of the Recelvership Defendants as set forth
by court order or aslisted herein; and

3. Any remaining funds to the Plaintiffs for the fund established pursuant to Part 1V
of this Stipulated Permanent Injunction.

C. Upon the filing of the Recaiver’ sfind report, the Court’ s gpprova of the same, and the
Recaver’ sfulfillment of his payment obligations under this Section, the recaivership over the

Receivership Defendants shal be terminated, and the provisions of the Stipulated Preliminary Injunction
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and this Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction relating to the gppointment of the Recelver shdl be
dissolved. The Receivership Defendants, John F. Boone, Michael Cooper, and Robert C. Morgan
shdl indemnify and hold harmless the Recaiver for any clam made againg the Receiver arisng out of
the Recelver’ s activities pursuant to this Stipulated Order or previous orders of this Court.

VIl

DISSOLUTION OF ASSET FREEZE

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that:

A. The freeze againg the assets of the individua Defendants pursuant to Section [11 of the
Stipulated Preliminary Injunction shal be lifted to the extent necessary for said Defendants to make the
payment to the Commission required by Section 1V of this Stipulated Order, and upon compliance with
that Section, shall be lifted permanently; and

B. The freeze againgt the assets of the Receivership Defendants pursuant to Section 111 of
the Stipulated Preliminary Injunction shal remain in effect until such time as the Recelver recaives
payment of all Court-approved fees and expenses of the Receiver and the receivership isterminated

pursuant to Section VI, supra.
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IX

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that within five (5) business days after receipt by each
Defendant of this Stipulated Order as entered by the Court, each Defendant shall submit to both the
Commission and the State of Illinois a truthful siworn statement, in the form shown on Appendix B, that
shdl acknowledge receipt of this Stipulated Order.

X

PLAINTIFFS AUTHORITY TO MONITOR COMPLIANCE

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that Plantiffs are authorized to monitor Defendants
compliance with this Order by dl lawful means, induding but not limited to the following means:

A. Pantiffs are authorized, without further leave of court, to obtain discovery from any
person in the manner provided by Chapter V of the Federd Rules of Civil Procedure, Fed. R. Civ. P.
26 - 37, including the use of compulsory process pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 45, for the purpose of
monitoring and investigating any Defendant’ s compliance with any provison of this Order;

B. Paintiffs are authorized to use representatives posing as consumers and suppliers to any
Defendant, Defendant’ s employees, or any other entity managed or controlled in whole or in part by
Defendant Boone, Cooper, or Morgan, without the necessity of identification or prior notice; and

C. Nothing in this Order shdl limit the Commission’s lawful use of compulsory process,
pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 49, 57b-1, to investigate whether any
Defendant has violated any provision of this Order or Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45.

Xl
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COMPLIANCE REPORTING BY DEFENDANT

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that, in order that compliance with the provisons of this
Order may be monitored:
A. For aperiod of five (5) years from the date of entry of this Order, Defendants shall
notify the Plaintiffs of the following:
1 Any changes in Defendant’ s resdence, mailing addresses, and telephone
numbers, within ten (10) days of the date of such change;
2. Any changesin Defendant Boone, Cooper, or Morgan’s employment status
(including sdf-employment) within ten (10) days of such change. Such notice shdl include the name
and address of each busnessthat Defendant is affiliated with or employed by, a statement of the nature
of the busness, and a statement of Defendant’ s duties and respongbilities in connection with the
business or employment; and
3. Any proposed change in the structure of any corporate Defendant, or any
proposed change in the structure of any business entity owned or controlled by Defendant Boone,
Cooper, or Morgan, such as cregtion, incorporation, dissolution, assgnment, sae, creation or
dissolution of subsidiaries, or any other change that may affect compliance obligations arising out of this
Order, thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of any proposed change;
B. One hundred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of this Order, Defendants shdll
provide awritten report to the Plaintiffs, sworn to under pendty of perjury, setting forth in detail the
manner and form in which they have complied and are complying with this Order. This report shall

include but not be limited to:
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1 For Defendants Boone, Cooper, and Morgan, Defendant’ s then current
residence address and tel ephone number;

2. For Defendants Boone, Cooper, and Morgan, Defendant’ s then current
employment, business addresses and telephone numbers, a description of the business activities of each
such employer, and Defendant’ s title and respongbilities for each employer;

3. A copy of each acknowledgment of receipt of this Order obtained by
Defendants pursuant to Section XIIl, infra;

4, A statement describing the manner in which Defendants have complied and are
complying with the provisons of Sectionsl, 111, IV, and VI, supra; and

5. A gtatement indicating whether any performance bond has been obtained by
Defendants pursuant to Section |1, supra, and attaching a copy of any such bond so obtained;

C. Upon written request by arepresentative of either Plaintiff, Defendants shall submit
additional written reports (under oath, if requested) and produce documents on fifteen (15) days notice
with respect to any conduct subject to this Order;

D. For the purposes of this Order, Defendants shdl, unless otherwise directed by
Fantiffs authorized representatives, mail dl written notifications to the Commission to:

Regiona Director for Midwest Region

Federd Trade Commission

55 East Monroe Street, Suite 1860

Chicago, Illinois 60603
Re FTC and People of the State of Illinois v. 1% Financia Solutions, Inc., et al.

and to the State of lllinois at:

Charles G. Fergus, Chief
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Consumer Fraud Bureau

100 W. Randolph St.--12th floor

Chicago, lllinois 60601

Re FTC and People of the State of 1llinois v. 1% Financia Solutions, Inc.. et al.;

E For the purposes of this Section, “employment” includes the performance of services as
an employee, consultant, or independent contractor, and “employers’ include any individua or entity for
whom Defendant Boone, Cooper, or Morgan performs services as an employee, consultant, or
independent contractor; and

F. For purposes of the compliance reporting required by this Section, the Commission is
authorized to communicate directly with Defendants.

X1

MONITORING COMPLIANCE OF SALES PERSONNEL

IF ISFURTHER ORDERED that Defendants Boone, Cooper, and Morgan, in connection
with any business where (1) Defendant Boone, Cooper, or Morgan is the mgority owner of the
business or directly or indirectly manages or controls the business, and where (2) the businessis
engaged in telemarketing, or asssting others engaged in tdlemarketing, are hereby permanently
restrained and enjoined from:

A. Failing to take reasonable steps sufficient to monitor and ensure that al employees and
independent contractors engaged in sales or other customer service functions comply with Sections |,
111, and VI of this Stipulated Order. Such steps shdl include adequate monitoring of sales presentations
or other calswith cusomers, and shdl dso include, & a minimum, thefollowing: (1) ligening to the

ora representations made by persons engaged in sales or other customer service functions; (2)
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establishing a procedure for receaiving and responding to consumer complaints; and (3) ascertaining the
number and nature of consumer complaints regarding transactions in which each employee or
independent contractor is involved;

B. Failing promptly to investigate fully any consumer complaint received by any busnessto
which this Section applies;, and

C. Failing to take corrective action with respect to any saes person whom Defendant
determines is not complying with this Order, which may include training, disciplining, and/or terminating
such sales person.

X1

DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANT

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that, for aperiod of five (5) years from the date of entry of
this Order, Defendants shall:

A. Provide a copy of this Order to, and obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment of
receipt of same from, each officer or director, each individua serving in a management capecity, dl
personnd involved in responding to consumer complaints or inquiries, and dl sales personnd, whether
designated as employees, consultants, independent contractors or otherwise, immediately upon
employing or retaining any such persons, for any business where (1) Defendant Boone, Cooper, or
Morgan isthe mgority owner of the business or directly or indirectly manages or controls the business,
and where (2) the businessis engaged in tdlemarketing, or asssting others engaged in telemarketing;
and

B. Maintain for a period of three (3) years after creation, and upon reasonable notice,
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make avallable to representatives of the Plaintiffs, the original sgned and dated acknowledgments of the
receipt of copies of this Order, as required in Subsection A of this Section.
XV

ACCESSTO BUSINESS PREMISES

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that, for aperiod of five (5) years from the date of entry of
this Order, for the purpose of further determining compliance with this Order, Defendants shdl permit
representatives of the Plaintiffs, within three (3) business days of receipt of written notice from the
Paintiffs

A. Access during normd business hours to any office, or facility storing documents, of any
business where (1) Defendant Boone, Cooper, or Morgan is the mgority owner of the business or
directly or indirectly manages or controls the business, and where (2) the businessisengaged in
telemarketing, or asssting others engaged in telemarketing. In providing such access, Defendants shdl
permit representatives of the Plaintiffs to ingpect and copy dl documents relevant to any meatter
contained in this Order, and shdl permit Plaintiffs representatives to remove documents relevant to any
matter contained in this Order for a period not to exceed five (5) business days so that the documents
may be inspected, inventoried, and copied; and

B. Tointerview the officers, directors, and employees, including al personnel involved in
responding to consumer complaints or inquiries, and al saes personnel, whether designated as
employees, consultants, independent contractors or otherwise, of any business to which Subsection A
of this Section applies, concerning matters relating to compliance with the terms of this Order. The

person interviewed may have counsdl present.
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Provided that, upon gpplication of either Plaintiff and for good cause shown, the Court may
enter an ex parte order granting immediate access to Defendants business premises for the purposes
of ingpecting and copying dl documents relevant to any matter contained in this Order.

XV

RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that, for aperiod of eight (8) years from the date of entry of
this Order, for any business where (1) Defendant Boone, Cooper, or Morgan is the mgjority owner of
the business or directly or indirectly manages or controls the business, and where (2) the businessis
engaged in tdemarketing, or asssting others engaged in tdlemarketing, Defendants and their agents,
employees, officers, corporations, successors, and assigns, and those personsin active concert or
participation with them who receive actua notice of this Order by persona service or otherwise, are
hereby restrained and enjoined from failing to create and retain the following records:

A. Accounting records that reflect the cost of goods or services sold, revenues generated,
and the disbursement of such revenues,

B. Personnd records accuratdly reflecting: the name, address, and telephone number of
each person employed in any capacity by such business, including as an independent contractor; theat
person’sjob title or position; the date upon which the person commenced work; and the date and
reason for the person’ s termination, if gpplicable;

C. Customer files containing the names, addresses, phone numbers, dollar amounts paid,
quantity of items or services purchased, and description of items or services purchased, to the extent

such information is obtained in the ordinary course of business,
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D. Complaint and refund requests (whether received directly, indirectly or through any
third party) and any responses to those complaints or requests; and
E Copies of dl sdes stripts, training materids, advertisements, or other marketing
materias.
XVI

RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that the Court shdl retain jurisdiction of this matter for dl

pUrpOSES.

The Commission, the State of Illinois, and Defendants hereby stipulate and agree to entry of the

foregoing Stipulated Order, which shdl congtitute afind judgment in this action.

SIGNED AND STIPULATED BY:

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

Dated:

JOHN C. HALLERUD

KATHERINE ROMANO SCHNACK

55 East Monroe, Suite 1860

Chicago, Illinois 60603

(312) 960-5634 (tel ephone)

(312) 960-5600 (facsimile)

Attorneysfor Plantiff Federd Trade Commission

STATE OF ILLINOIS
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Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

CHARLES G. FERGUS, Chief

JANICE M. PARKER, Assgtant Attorney Genera
GREG GRZESKIEWICZ, Assgtant Attorney Generd
Attorney Generd of lllinois

Consumer Fraud Bureau

100 West Randolph Street, 12th Floor

Chicago, Illinois 60601

Attorneys for Plantiff State of Illinois

GREGG E. ZILAGYI
Ungaretti & Harris

3500 Three First Nationa Plaza
Chicago, Illinois 60602

(312) 977-4400 (telephone)
(312) 977-4405 (facsimile)
Court-Appointed Receiver

15T FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, INC., AMERICAN
BENEFITS CLUB, INC., ROCKWELL HOLDINGS, INC,,
AFFINITY MARKETING & SALES, INC., AFFINITY
MARKETING & SALES, LLC, CROWN DISTRIBUTORS,
INC., LEADER SALES COMPANY, INC., MERCHANT
SERVICES, INC., MERCURY CONSULTING
SERVICES, MILLENNIUM SALES, INC., NORTH
AMERICAN MARKETING GROUP, INC., REGAL
PRODUCTS SALES & DISTRIBUTING COMPANY,,
ROCKWELL MARKETING, INC., and THE FLETCHER
GROUP, INC.

JOHN F. BOONE, as an officer of Defendant Corporations

MARTY J. SCHWARTZ
Three First Nationd Plaza
Suite 3700

Chicago, Illinois 60606
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(312) 558-4293 (phone)
(312) 558-7750 (facsimile)
Attorney for Defendant Corporations

Dated:
JOHN F. BOONE, individudly
Dated:
MICHAEL COOPER, individudly
Dated:
ROBERT C. MORGAN, individudly
Dated:
MARTY J. SCHWARTZ
Attorney for Individua Defendants Boone, Cooper, and
Morgan
IT 1SSO ORDERED.
Dated:

HONORABLE MORTON DENLOW
United States Magidtrate Judge
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APPENDIX A
to Federal Trade Commission, et al. v. 1% Financia Solutions, Inc., et al.,
Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction with Consumer Redress and Other Equitable Relief

INTHE UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION and
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

Hantiffs,

V. Civ. No. 01C 8790

N N N N N N N N

1% FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, INC.; AMERICAN ) Judge Holderman
BENEFITSCLUB, INC.; ROCKWELL )

HOLDINGS, INC.; AFFINITY MARKETING & ) Magidrate Judge Denlow
SALES, INC.; AFFINITY MARKETING & SALES,LLC, )

CROWN DISTRIBUTORS, INC,;

LEADER SALES COMPANY, INC.; MERCHANT
SERVICES, INC; MERCURY CONSULTING
SERVICES; MILLENNIUM SALES, INC;

NORTH AMERICAN MARKETING GROUP, INC,;
REGAL PRODUCTS SALES & DISTRIBUTING
COMPANY; ROCKWELL MARKETING, INC.; and
THE FLETCHER GROUP, INC.,,

[llinois corporations;

JOHN F. BOONE, individudly and as an officer of
Affinity Marketing & Sdles, Inc., Crown Didributors, Inc.,
Merchant Services, Inc., Millennium Sdes, Inc., North )
American Marketing Group, Inc., Rockwell Holdings, Inc.,
Rockwell Marketing, Inc.; and The FHetcher Group, Inc.,

N N N N N N N N N N N N

MICHAEL COOPER,
individudly; and

ROBERT C. MORGAN,
individualy,
Defendants.

S N N N N N N N N N




l, , hereby gate that the information contained in the Financid

Statement of Defendant and related papers provided to the Federal

Trade Commission on [and as amended on  If

gpplicable] was [were] true, accurate, and complete at such time.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated:

20f 28



APPENDIX B
to Federal Trade Commission, et al. v. 1% Financia Solutions, Inc., et al.,
Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction with Consumer Redress and Other Equitable Relief

INTHE UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION and
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

Hantiffs,

V. Civ. No. 01C 8790

N N N N N N N N

1% FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, INC.; AMERICAN ) Judge Holderman
BENEFITSCLUB, INC.; ROCKWELL )

HOLDINGS, INC.; AFFINITY MARKETING & ) Magidrate Judge Denlow
SALES, INC.; AFFINITY MARKETING & SALES,LLC, )

CROWN DISTRIBUTORS, INC,;

LEADER SALES COMPANY, INC.; MERCHANT
SERVICES, INC; MERCURY CONSULTING
SERVICES; MILLENNIUM SALES, INC;

NORTH AMERICAN MARKETING GROUP, INC,;
REGAL PRODUCTS SALES & DISTRIBUTING
COMPANY; ROCKWELL MARKETING, INC.; and
THE FLETCHER GROUP, INC.,,

[llinois corporations;

JOHN F. BOONE, individudly and as an officer of
Affinity Marketing & Sdles, Inc., Crown Didributors, Inc.,
Merchant Services, Inc., Millennium Sdes, Inc., North )
American Marketing Group, Inc., Rockwell Holdings, Inc.,
Rockwell Marketing, Inc.; and The FHetcher Group, Inc.,

N N N N N N N N N N N N

MICHAEL COOPER,
individudly; and

ROBERT C. MORGAN,
individualy,
Defendants.

S N N N N N N N N N




[Name of Defendant], being duly sworn, hereby states and affirms as follows:

1 My nameis . My current residence addressis __

. lam

acitizen of the United States and am over the age of eighteen. | have persond knowledge of the facts
st forth in this Affidavit.

2. | am adefendant in Federal Trade Commission, et al. v. 1% Financia Solutions, Inc., et

al., (United States Digtrict Court for the Northern Digtrict of Illinois).

3. On , | recelved a copy of the Stipulated Order for

Permanent Injunction With Consumer Redress and Other Equitable Relief, which was signed by the

Honorable James F. Holderman, and entered by the Court on . Atrue

and correct copy of the Order | received is appended to this Affidavit.
| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing istrue

and correct. Executed on [date], at [city and State].

[Full name of Defendant]

State of

County of
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this__ day of , 2002.

Notary Public
My Commisson Expires
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